#### MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MISSION VALLEY PLANNING GROUP

#### January 07, 2015

Steve Abbo Jason Broad Paul Brown John Carson Perry Dealy Robert Doherty Randall Dolph Alan Grant Matthew Guillory John LaRaia Elizabeth Leventhal Andrew Michajlenko John Nugent Marco Sessa Dottie Surdi **Rick Tarbell** Josh Weiselberg

# MEMBERS ABSENT

<u>GUESTS</u>

Deborah Bossmeyer Gina Cord Bob Cummings Jim Penner Alex Plishner Karen Ruggels

FEDERAL REP'S STAFF

STATE STAFF Katelyn Hailey Amy Bridge Nicole Burgess Arlene Garcia Herbst Derek Hulse Rob Hutsel Matthew Klepper Richard Ledford Kathy Lippitt Mike McNerney Todd Majcha Jan Sachs Mary Shepperd Michael Schnell Gary Wood

CITY STAFF Jenny An Tara Lieberman Seth Litchney Brian Schoenfisch Ryley Webb

ASSEMBLY STAFF Katelyn Hailey Dottie Surdi, Chair, called the regular meeting of the Mission Valley Planning Group (MVPG) to order at 12:04 p.m. at the Mission Valley Library Community Room located at 2123 Fenton Parkway, San Diego, CA.

# A. CALL TO ORDER

Verify Quorum: 17 members were present, constituting a quorum.

**B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE** – Matthew Guillory led the Pledge of Allegiance.

# C. INTRODUCTIONS / OPENING REMARKS/ AGENDA CHANGE

Dottie Surdi welcomed everyone to the meeting and reminded those present to sign the sign in sheets.

Guests introduced themselves.

# D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Perry Dealy moved to approve the minutes of the December 03, 2014 regular meeting. Elizabeth Leventhal seconded the motion. Minutes were approved 13 - 0 - 4 with Steve Abbo, Jason Broad, Matthew Guillory and Dottie Surdi abstaining.

# E. PUBLIC INPUT – NON-AGENDA ITEMS BUT WITHIN THE SCOPE OF AUTHORITY OF THE PLANNING GROUP.

"The Mission Valley Planning Group has been formed and recognized by the City Council to make recommendations to the City Council, Planning Commission, City staff, and other governmental agencies on land use matters, specifically concerning the preparation of, adoption of, implementation of, or amendment to, the General Plan or a land use plan when a plan relates to the Mission Valley community boundaries. The planning group also advises on other land use matters as requested by the City or other governmental agency." Mission Valley Planning Group Bylaws as Amended 05/07/2008, approved 12/02/2008

Issues addressed:

- Formation of a Riverwalk development subcommittee
- Flooding in Mission Valley
- Infrastructure deficits in Mission Valley, especially drainage and traffic
- Uptown Regional Bikeways Project http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/RegionalBikeProjects/uptown\_intro.aspx
- Social Host Ordinance

# F. MEMBERSHIP BUSINESS

# 1. Nomination of Board Member

John Nugent recommended Rob Hutsel for the position of Local Businessperson with a term ending March 2018. This will fill all MVPG Board positions.

# John Nugent nominated Rob Hutsel for the position of Local Businessperson with a term ending March 2018. Josh Weiselberg seconded the nomination. Nominee was elected 17 - 0 - 0.

# 2. By-laws and agenda "clean-up"

a. Change the name of the current MVPG Standing Committee "Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee

## **Draft motion:**

To change the name of the current MVPG Standing Committee "Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee" to "Mission Valley Community Plan Committee" and dissolve the Park and Recreation Standing Committee.

Background:

The San Diego City Council recently approved some amendments to Council Policy 600-24 and the Community Planning Groups Bylaws Shell. Based on these amendments a staff member at the City is preparing a revised set of MVPG By-laws for our review and approval later in 2015, As the revised MVPG By-laws are prepared we may offer changes to the By-laws that do not conflict with Council Policy 600-24 or the new amendments.

Standing Committees: a permanent committee appointed to deal with a specified subject

From existing MVPG By-laws (b) Subcommittees The Mission Valley Planning Group may establish standing and ad hoc subcommittees when their operation contributes to more effective discussions at regular planning group meetings.

(i) STANDING SUBCOMMITTEES - Pursuant to the purpose of the Mission Valley Planning Group as identified in Article II, Section 1, the planning group has established the following standing subcommittees: the Mission Valley Design Advisory Board (See Exhibit B), the Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee, Park and Recreation Committee and the Membership Committee.

After discussion:

John Nugent moved to change the name of the current MVPG Standing Committee "Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee" to "Mission Valley Community Plan Update Committee". Perry Dealy seconded the motion. Motion was approved 17-0-0.

Perry Dealy moved to dissolve the Park and Recreation Standing Committee and create an Ad Hoc Parks subcommittee. Matthew Guillory seconded the motion. Motion was approved 17-0-0.

b. Dissolve the MVPG Ad-Hoc committee named "Stadium Committee".

# Draft motion To dissolve the MVPG Ad-Hoc committee named "Stadium Committee".

Mission Valley Planning Group-Minutes- January 07, 2015

Ad Hoc Committees:

Ad Hoc Committees are formed for a time limited specific task or objective and dissolved after the specific task or objective has been met. If the original time limited specific task or objective has stalled or evolved into another specific task or objective the original ad hoc committee should be dissolved and a new ad hoc committee established, when appropriate, for a new time limited specific task or objective.

From existing MVPG By-laws (b) Subcommittees The Mission Valley Planning Group may establish standing and ad hoc subcommittees when their operation contributes to more effective discussions at regular planning group meetings.

(ii) AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEES - Ad hoc subcommittees may be established for a finite period of time to review more focused issue areas and shall be disbanded following their review.

The San Diego Chargers have committed to play at Qualcomm stadium for the 2015 NFL season. The fate of the property/stadium is dependent on a plan for building a new stadium in San Diego County. If a plan develops it will most likely require voter approval. The earliest that a vote on any proposal would be put to San Diego voters would be November 2016.

After discussion:

John Nugent moved to dissolve the MVPG Ad-Hoc committee named "Stadium Committee". Randall Dolph seconded the motion. Motion was approved 14 – 3 –0.

C. Remove continuing agenda item ""Uptown Regional Bike Corridor Advisory Group" from future agendas.

#### Draft motion

To remove the continuing agenda item under community reports "Uptown Regional Bike Corridor Advisory Group" from future agendas.

http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/RegionalBikeProjects/uptown\_intro.aspx

The Uptown Regional Bike Corridors Project will create connections within neighborhoods, improve streets, and create links to the larger bike network being built throughout the region. The project will provide on-street bicycle facilities from Old Town and Mission Valley through Uptown to Downtown

# Project Status

After extensive public outreach efforts and preliminary analysis, bikeway alignments that appear to best meet project objectives – and present the most opportunity to create an excellent community asset – have been identified along all 12 miles of the three project corridors.

# http://www.keepsandiegomoving.com/RegionalBikeProjects/uptown\_FAQ.aspx

The project team continues to conduct detailed design and engineering analysis over the next several months to address the challenges identified during the alignment analysis and collaborate with the community to find the best solutions. Environmental review is also expected to be conducted in 2015. Then the project will go to the SANDAG Board for approval of the project. After design is finalized, construction will begin. Depending on the complexity of different segments, the engineering and construction phases may occur at different times and rates for different segments. Community engagement efforts will continue through the next phases of the project, including direct outreach to residents and businesses along the project alignments, as well as members of the broader community.

After discussion and a recommendation to have a representative from the SANDAG Uptown regional bike corridor project make a presentation at a future meeting:

John Nugent moved to remove the continuing agenda item under community reports "Uptown Regional Bike Corridor Advisory Group" from future agendas. Robert Doherty seconded the motion. Motion was approved 16 - 0 - 1 with Elizabeth Leventhal abstaining.

#### 3. Members for MVPG Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee

Dottie Surdi thanked all members who volunteered to serve on the committee and expressed regret that all of the members were not able to be appointed.

Dottie appointed the following MVPG Board members to the MVPG Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee. Community members will be appointed at a later meeting:

Chair: John Nugent Vice Chairs: Andrew Michajlenko and Elizabeth Leventhal

Members: Deborah Bossmeyer Paul Brown Perrry Dealy Alan Grant Rob Hutsel Karen Ruggels Marco Sessa Dottie Surdi Josh Weiselberg

John Nugent expressed gratitude for the confidence placed in him by being appointed chair of the committee.

John also expressed gratitude for the number of MVPG members who volunteered to serve on the committee; however the number is limited by the Brown Act. All meetings will be open and noticed so all members can attend. A MVPG member in waiting list has been created so if there is an opening the Chair can appoint a replacement.

John stated that he would begin working with City staff for times and locations for meetings. Standing Committees are governed by the Brown Act/CA Open Meeting Act.

John asked Community members to leave their names and email address on the sign up sheet if they were interested in serving on the Mission Valley Community Plan Update committee or the MVPG Riverwalk committee/subcommittee, if it is formed.

# G. TREASURER'S REPORT

Bob Doherty reported that the balance is \$1,357.06.

# H. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORTS

**1.** <u>Police Department</u> – Officer Adam McElroy Officer McElroy was not present.

<u>Fire Department</u> – No report.

# I. GOVERNMENTAL STAFF REPORTS

1. Mayor's Office

Anthony George was not present.

## 2. State Representatives

a. <u>Senate Member's Office</u> – Sen. Marty Block from the 39<sup>th</sup> Senate District l. Katelyn Hailey reported on:

- New legislative session has begun
- Sen Block has introduced a comprehensive plan to improve access to a higher education in California and help students afford college and finish their degrees. Senate Bill 15 boosts funding for University of California and California State University to support enrollment growth, provide more course offerings, and increase student support services
- Committee assignments have been made.
- Human Trafficking Awareness Month
- Passage of Sen Block's Bill No. 939 on increasing criminal jurisdiction for human trafficking, pimping, and pandering
- Introduction of Sen Block's Bill No. 473 to add human trafficking as an offense that may be used to establish a pattern of criminal gang activity.

More information can be found at: <u>http://sd39.senate.ca.gov/</u>

b. <u>Assembly Member's Office</u> – Shirley Weber from the 79th Assembly District George Gastil was not present. No report.

3. <u>Federal Representatives</u> a. Congresswoman Susan Davis' Office Armita Pedramrazi was not present. More information is available at: <u>http://www.house.gov/susandavis/</u>

b. <u>Congressman Scott Peters' Office</u> – Sarah Czarrecki was not present. No report.

# J. NEW BUSINESS

# 1. Agenda Item J-1. Mission Valley Holiday Inn Express at 625 Hotel Circle-CJ Conrad-- Action Item

The applicant has requested that the item be removed from the January agenda and placed on the February agenda as the environmental report has not been completed and released.

John Nugent moved that the Mission Valley Holiday Inn Express at 625 Hotel Circle be removed from the agenda. Marco Sessa seconded the motion. Motion was approved 17 - 0 - 0.

2. Agenda Item J-2. Amendment to the Atlas Specific Plan- Town and Country Resort-.Action Item-

# Draft motion:

Recommend approval of the initiation of a plan amendment to remove the Town and Country site from the Atlas Specific Plan and to initiate a new Town and Country Specific Plan for a Multi-Use Transit Oriented Development.

http://www.sandiego.gov/planning/community/profiles/missionvalley/pdf/plans/atlas full.pdf

Todd Majcher reported:

The initiation of a Land Use Plan Amendment is being requested to remove the Town and Country from the Atlas Specific Plan and initiate a new Town and Country Specific Plan for a Multi-Use Transit Oriented Development. The Town and Country project is a 39.7 acre property located in the Mission Valley. The project is bounded by Hotel Circle North on the south, Fashion Valley Road on the west, and the San Diego River on the north. The adjacent land uses include Interstate 8 on the south, a golf course on the west, Fashion Valley Shopping Center on the north, and the Union Tribune newspaper offices and printing/distribution facilities on the east. Regional access is from Interstate 8 to the south and State Route 163 approximately 0.25 miles to the east. Regional access is also provided by a Green Line light rail transit station adjacent to the north boundary of the property which was added after the Atlas Specific Plan was approved.

The project site is currently developed as a convention hotel and related supporting facilities. This includes 953 hotel rooms and 200,000 square foot of convention space. The Atlas Specific Plan, which includes this property, was approved in 1988. The Atlas Specific Plan allows for the expansion of the Town and Country up to 2,300 hotel rooms and 229,000 square feet of convention space.

An amendment to the Atlas Specific Plan to remove Town and Country and the initiation of a new Town and Country Specific Plan is being requested to change the properties use from Convention Hotel to a mixed-use transit oriented development which would include an integrated mix of hotel (convention and leisure), convention space and residential uses. The Conceptual Land Use Plan would reduce the existing hotel rooms from 953 to 705 and also reduce the existing convention space from 200,000 to 140,000 square feet. All hotel rooms will be renovated along with the addition of a new lobby, recreation facilities and food and beverage services. These improvements will allow the hotel to better compete for convention business and attract a larger share of the San Diego leisure business. The addition of approximately 840 multi-family residential units in close proximity to the transit station, enhancements to the San Diego River, Town and Country Hotel, and Fashion Valley Mall will create a walkable, dynamic, transit oriented neighborhood not currently available in Mission Valley.

The San Diego River Park Master Plan elements shall be incorporated into the Conceptual Land Use Plan. Specifically the Town and Country Reach of the San Diego River is designed to welcome and engage first time visitors, residents, and daily commuters to the San Diego River Park. Four access points to the San Diego River Park Pathway will be 'way stations' along the reach. Each is on axis with pedestrian routes of the existing conference center, hotel, transit center, and new residential development. The proposed enhancements to the San Diego River Park Pathway and way stations meet the River Park Design Guidelines and provide additional value to the River Park as well as the San Diego community.

The project's circulation network will provide for automobile, pedestrian and bicyclist travel – further expanding the mobility options for hotel guests, residents and visitors. Town and Country will also include sustainable design features, which demonstrate the project's commitment to reducing its carbon footprint. It is anticipated the project would be built out over a 5-7 year period. The hotel improvements would proceed immediately following project approval. The residential development would proceed in accordance with market demand.

A summary of the existing and proposed development program, traffic generation and parking is included in the Plan Amendment Initiation materiel submitted to Staff. There is also a comparison to the currently approved Atlas Specific Plan development program for the Town and Country site.

After discussion about the project, the problems identified by community members in the Public Input session of the agenda, the incorporation of the Riverpark Master Plan into the project and questions about the residential component of the project:

John Nugent moved to approve the initiation of a plan amendment to remove the Town and Country site from the Atlas Specific Plan and to initiate a new Multi-Use Transit Oriented Development Plan. Alan Grant seconded the motion. Motion was approved 13–4–0.

**3.** Agenda Item J-3. MVPG subcommittee for the Riverwalk Project- Richard Ledford-Action Item- (15 minutes)

# Draft motion: That a MVPG Ad Hoc subcommittee be established for the Riverwalk project.

Richard Ledford from Related CA requested that with the initiation of an amendment to the Levi-Cushman Specific Plan approved by the Planning Commission on October 9, 2014, the Related CA team moving forwarded with the long and detailed process of moving from concepts to plan, and given the importance of this project that MVPG create an Ad Hoc subcommittee of the Planning Group that will work closely with the Related CA through the process

Questions/Comments/Discussion:

- Previous subcommittees for projects-Hazard Center
- Projects without subcommittees-Civita
- Dan Diego Planning Commission suggested forming a subcommittee
- Populating committee of MVPG members
- Meeting schedules
- Committee will act like a "working group"

Jason Broad moved to create a MVPG Ad Hoc subcommittee for the Riverwalk project. Robert Doherty seconded the motion. Motion was approved 13–3–1 with Rick Tarbell abstaining.

#### **K. OLD BUSINESS**

#### 1. City Planning Update-Nancy Graham

Nancy is currently on maternity leave. In her place Brian Schoenfisch reported:

- Staff is working on updates for components of the Community Plan Update
- Phyllis Place traffic report is about completed, environmental will review with the EIR estimated for April and a City Council vote on the project in summer of 2015. For more information: <u>http://www.civitalife.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/03/serra-mesa-parks-and-rec-council-presentation-v2.pdf</u>

#### 2. Council Office-District 7- Councilmember Scott Sherman

Ryley Webb reported on:

- The Councilmember would like to wish everyone a Happy New Year!
- The dredging at Murphy Canyon has begun and will take ~6 weeks. This should help prevent future flooding of Qualcomm stadium
- The Councilmember was assigned to the San Diego River Conservancy. He is very excited about this assignment because the San Diego River flows through the heart of Mission Valley. He looks forward to working with the conservancy to implement the River Park Master Plan
- The Councilmember will be at a Mission Valley Planning Group meeting in the coming months. He is looking forward to seeing everyone and taking questions.

#### **3.** Subcommittee Reports:

a. Standing Committees:

# 1) Design Advisory Board – Randy Dolph provided the following minutes from the meeting.

# DESIGN ADVISORY BOARD

Minutes from January 7, 2015 meeting: TO: Dottie Surdi, MVPG Chair FROM: Randy Dolph, DAB Chair SUBJECT: Report of December 5, 2015 DAB Meeting The meeting was called to order at 3:30 P.M. in the Mission Valley Library. Members present were:Paul Brown, Randy Dolph, Jerry Shonkwiler, Dottie Surdi, and Bruce Warren. Morris Cerullo Legacy Center applicant representatives included Jim Penner

(MCWE), Chris Morrow (PDC), and Mike Harrah (MCWE).

Morris Cerullo Legacy Center - Information Item

Jim Penner introduced the team. Mike Harrah provided a brief history of his professional relationship with Morris Cerullo, followed with an overview of the elements that were used as the basis of the design for the project:

- Overall vision of the project
- Entry arch
- Romanesque theme
- Review of the inspirational images
- 65' maximum height limitation

Although the general programmatic elements remained the same, Mike outlined the design revisions that were made since the last DAB presentation.

Question, comments, and discussion from the board included:

- The DAB provided a comparison to other prominent San Diego campuses that have a strong thematic vernacular: The University of San Diego (with its Spanishrenaissance style of architecture), San Diego State University (with its Mission Revival style of architecture), and Balboa Park (also with a Spanish renaissance style). Each of these large campuses is largely set apart from any adjacent developments. However, this is not the case with the Morris Cerullo Legacy Center within Mission Valley.
- Concerns remained that the project as presented today remained overly thematic.

Discussions related to this topic included:

- Portions of the project remained overly "arcuated" (too many arches).
- The development remained too much like a theme park.
- Can the project goals be achieved without an overly strong thematic emphasis?
- While discussing the large water feature toward the front of the site, the applicant noted that it was largely added to mask the freeway noise and provide visual interest to the site. The DAB did not take exception to the water feature, but recommended that the applicant consider the impact should the water feature be turned off due to conservation measures.
- When Mike requested specific recommendations to move forward, the DAB responded that it is not tasked with designing projects, but rather with being an

advisory board providing recommendations. Toward this end, the DAB offered the following for consideration:

- Limit or restrain the thematic components of the project.
- Do the domes need to be visible, or can they be concealed behind a tall parapet?
- Simplify the articulation of the arcade columns.
- Lessen the carousel appearance of the round buildings.
- Simplify or omit the cupolas above the domes and at the timeshare structure.
- Consider an alternative to the mansard roof on the timeshare building.
- Consider a color palette that works with the natural surroundings.
- Mike provided an overview of the landscape concept plan, including a couple row of trees toward the front of the site, large water feature, and trail system toward the rear of the site.
- When asked if the DAB could provide interim feedback, Dolph commented that the Brown Act strictly prohibits the DAB from discussing the project outside of the public meeting forum. However, this did not preclude the applicant from forwarding an advance copy of their interim progress prior to the next DAB meeting. If needed, the DAB could hold a special meeting, provided it is properly publically noticed.

The applicant noted that they anticipate being back before the DAB in March as an action item.

Since the project was before the board for information only, the DAB thanked the team for the presentation and open dialogue.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:40 P.M., with the next regularly meeting tentatively scheduled for Monday, February 2, 2015. -----end of DAB minutes

Randy discussed the main points of concern regarding design of the project.

Randy asked Brian Schoenfisch if the MV Community Plan update would have an architectural design component to give projects more guidance. Brian replied that the intent is to have a section in the plan on architectural design.

John Nugent commented on the artists renderings of the project (page 1, 20, 21-as examples) portray the project with external sidewalks along Hotel Circle South; HOWEVER they do not indicate that the sidewalks are continuous along Hotel Circle South. The artist's renderings show the sidewalks curving into the Morris Cerullo Legacy International Center but do not indicate a means for a pedestrian to cross the vehicle entrance and reach the sidewalks on the opposite side of the entrance. The artist's renderings show the sidewalks curving into the Center with a patch of grass between the sidewalks and the vehicle entrance to the Center.

# 2) Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee

Repeated/copied from the membership section of these minutes:

Members for MVPG Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee

Dottie Surdi thanked all members who volunteered to serve on the committee and expressed regret that all of the members were not able to be appointed.

Dottie appointed the following MVPG Board members to the MVPG Transportation and Community Plan Update Committee. Community members will be appointed at a later meeting:

Chair: John Nugent Vice Chairs: Andrew Michajlenko and Elizabeth Leventhal

Members: Deborah Bossmeyer Paul Brown Perrry Dealy Alan Grant Rob Hutsel Karen Ruggels Marco Sessa Dottie Surdi Josh Weiselberg

John Nugent expressed gratitude for the confidence placed in him by being appointed chair of the committee.

John also expressed gratitude for the number of MVPG members who volunteered to serve on the committee; however the number is limited by the Brown Act. All meetings will be open and noticed so all members can attend. A MVPG member in waiting list has been created so if there is an opening the Chair can appoint a replacement.

John stated that he would begin looking at options for times and locations for meetings. Standing Committees are governed by the Brown Act/CA Open Meeting Act.

John asked Community members to leave their names and email address on the sign up sheet if they were interested in serving on the Mission Valley Community Plan Update committee or the MVPG Riverwalk committee/subcommittee, if it is formed.

**3) Park and Recreation Committee-Jason Broad** No report

**b. Ad Hoc Committees1) Stadium Committee**No report

# 2) Public Health, Safety and Welfare Committee

Elizabeth Leventhal reported:

1. Congratulations to Dottie Surdi on being named to the San Diego Housing Commission

2. there is a growing interest in the 25 Cities expanding into Mission Valley. For more information: <u>http://endingsdhomelessness.org/2014/04/22/the-25-cities-initiative-is-launching-in-san-diego</u>

# 4. Community Reports

## a. San Diego River Coalition –

Allan Grant reported that there was no meeting in December. The agenda for the January meeting is still being formulated. The committee meets the third Friday of each month from 3:00-4:30 at the Mission Valley Library.

# b. Community Planning Chairs Meeting –

Dottie Surdi reported that there was no December meeting and minutes of the last meeting will be sent out when approved.

# c.. Uptown Regional Bike Corridor Advisory Group

No report

# 5. Miscellaneous Mail

There were no items

## 6. Miscellaneous Items

There were no items

**L. ADJOURNMENT** – There being no further business to be brought before the Committee, the meeting was adjourned at 1:40 PM

The next regular meeting will be on Wednesday February 04, 2015 at 12:00 p.m. at the Mission Valley Library, Community Room.

John Nugent, Secretary